G S A & Associates LLP

Chartlered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF VT EMOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VT EMOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and the notes to financial statements including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as * financial statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including Indian Accounting standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS"), of the state of affairs of
the Company (financial position) as at March 31, 2023, and its profit (financial performance including other
comprchensive income), the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with standards on auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibility for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAT") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor’s report

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit report of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the oth
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information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is material misstatement thercin, we arc required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and if required issue a revised Audit report on
financial statcments.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-scction 5 of Section 134 of
the Companics Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statcments that give
a truc and fair vicw of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read
with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policics; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operation,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an anditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining




our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's usc of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures arc inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions arc based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the cconomic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 included in these
financial statements are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2022 which were audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion vide

their report dated April 29, 2022.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in exercisc of powers conferred by sub-section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we
enclose in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a) Wehave soughtand obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as

it appears from our examination of those books.




d)

¢)

g)

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in cquity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report arc in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable, rcad with relevant rules issued thereunder.
On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2023, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2023
from being appointed as a Directors in terms of section 164(2) of the Act

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating cffectivencss of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexurc
B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position.

ii) The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative contracts, other than
those which have alrcady been provided, for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) (a) The management has represented in Note 39B (6) that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented in Note 39B (7) that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any

guarantec, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above

contain any material misstatement.”

v) Since, the Company has neither paid or declared any dividend during the year nor proposed any

dividend for the year, hence, reporting requirement of clause (f) of rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable on the Company.

vi) As provisoto rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the company
only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.




h) Since the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year, hence, reporting

required under scction 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

For GSA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No: 000237N/N 500339
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M. No.: - 529619
Place; New Delhi
Date: May 08, 2023



G S A & Associates LLP

ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Chartered Accountants
(I;cfcrrc‘cii tto)m paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report
of even date

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Scction 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure as follows: -

i) Inrespect of Company’s Property, plant and cquipment and intangible assets:

a)  (A) The Company has maintaincd proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and cquipment.
(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets, Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(i)(a)(B) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b)  Property, plant and cquipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢)  According to the information and cxplanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any immovable
property. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant
and equipment or Intangible assets or both during the year.

e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions/Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii) With respect to clause ii), we state that; -

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company daoes
not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable

to the Company.

iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee
or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured and unsecured, to
companics, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the naturc of loans in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable.

v) According to the information and cxplanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public within the meaning of th
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directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thercunder. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the maintenance of the cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under scction 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activitics carricd out by the
Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order arc not applicable to the
Company.

vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books and records
as produced and examined by us, in our opinion:

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employces’ State Insurance, Income-tax and other
material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of
morc than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

ix) With respect to the loans and borrowing obtained by the Company, we report that: -

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any

bank or other lender.

c¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not availed any term loans during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Associates or
Joint Ventures. Hence, reporting under Clause 3(ix)(¢) of the Order is not applicable.




f)

x)
n)

b)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

xv)

xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Associates or
Joint Ventures. Hence, reporting under Clause 3(ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable.

With respect to Clause 3(x), we state that; -

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

In respect of reporting under clause 3(xi), we state that: -

a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality as outlined
in the Standards on Auditing, we report that no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the coursc of the audit.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT4 as prescribed under rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle blower complaints has
been received by the Company during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in
compliance with Section 188, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of Section 177 are not applicable
on the Company.

With respect to reporting under clause 3(xiv), we state that based on information and explanations
provided to us, the Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have
an internal audit system as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

With respect to reporting under clause 3(xvi), we state that: -

a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the
Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not
applicable.

xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding

financial year,

xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have taken into

Xix)

XXx)

consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to belicve that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance shect as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantce nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
meeting the threshold specified in section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

M No - 529619

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 08, 2023



G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in clause (f) of paragraph 2 under ‘Report on O i " secti
ther L
RO Repeet o bven i P r Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

Report on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VT EMOBILITY PRIVATE

LIMITED as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financlal Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“The ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating cffectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of

ﬁ'apds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was ecstablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process dcs.igned to proviflc reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company"s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
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dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that reccipts and expenditures of the company arc being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of \the company; and (3) provide
re.:asun-at.;le assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

M. No.: - 529619

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 08, 2023
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Oour millesines se louchitones

VT EMobility Private Limited -

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360600

Balance SBheet as at 31st March, 2023 ( 2 in Lakhs)
As at at
Note No. 31st March, 2023 31st MAl:ch. 2022
1. ASBETB
Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 3 7,438.98 8,281.56
(b) Financinl nascts
(i)Other non-current financial assets 5 551.78 -
7,990.76 8,281.56

Current assets
(a) Financial nssets

(i) Trade receivables 6 205.38 1,176.80
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 371.65 128.91
{iii) Other current financial assets 8 5.22 45,28
(b) Other current assets 9 224.34 2,027.80
806.60 3,378.80
Total Asscts 8,797.36 11,660.36
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 10 25.00 25.00
(b) Other equity n 1136.88 776.78
1161.88 801.78
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 6,033.57 6,976.06
(b) Provisions 13 7.94 3.66
(¢) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 390.55 63.22
(d) Other non-current liabilities 15 0.70 =
6,432.76 7,042.94
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 716.97 670.71
(ii) Trade payables 17
Total Outstanding Dues of Micro . .
Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors .
other than Micro Enterprises and 435.36 529.35
Small Enterprises
(iii) Other current financial liabilities 18 24.69 2,596.37
(b) Other current liabilities 19 25.39 19.16
(c) Provisions 20 0.32 0.05
1,202.72 3,815.64
Total Equity and Liabilities 8,797.36 11,660.36
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying Notes are forming part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For GSA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
VT EMobility Private Limited

KrishantMKufpar Gupta Sharad Gupta
Director Director
DIN : 08663129 DIN : 08670417
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Date : 08-May-2023

Attt Suasato
Amit Sharma jamal Bhai Ukabhai Chavada
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
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Cur millessones e ouchalones

VT EMobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360600

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023 { 2 in Lakhs)
Note No For the year ended For the year ended
‘ 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Revenue from operations 21 3,532.35 2,341.77
Other income 22 60.45 -
1 Total Income 3,592.80 2,341.77
I Expenses
Employee benefits expense 23 359.65 256.91
Finance costs 24 771.06 488.30
Depreciation and amortization expense 4 844.45 600.14
Other expenses 25 1,363.03 833.28
Total Expenses 3,338.19 2,178.64
1.  Profit/(Loss) before tax (I-II) 254.60 163.13
IV Tax Expense 26 57.74 63.45
Deferred tax 57.74 63.45
\Y Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year (III-IV) 196.86 99,67
Vl Other Comprehensive income 27 0.85 (0.69)

Items that will not be reclassified to Statement
of Profit and Loss

(i) Gains/(losses) on defined benefits plans 1.13 (0.93)

(i) Income tax (expense}/income on gain/(loss) on
defined benefit plan (0.28) 0.23

VIl Total Comprechensive Income (V+VI) 197.71 98.98
VI Earnings per equity share: 08
Face Value of share (Rs. 10/-)
(1) Basic 78.74 39.87
(2) Diluted 78.74 39.87
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying Notes are forming part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For GSA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants VT EMobility Private Limited
Firm Registration No. - 0Q#257N / N500339

Tanuj ﬁ"“”l

Partner

Krishan Kumar Gupta Sharad Gupta

Membership No. 529618 Director ‘ Director
DIN : 08663129 DIN : 08670417
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi
Place : New Dethi
Date : 08-May-2023
N
Al Suodura
Amit Sharma Ajamal Bhai Ukabhai Chavada
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
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VT EMobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTCI60600

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended J1st March, 2023 { T In Lakhs)
For the yenr ended For the year ended
31at March, 2023 31et March, 2022
A. CASIl FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES @
Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax 254760 163.13
Adjustment for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense B44.45 600,14
Finance costs 771,06 ~ 488,30
Interest income [28.82) .
Deferred income on Government grants (0.20)
Other Income-Provision Writen Back {31.43) -
Opemting profit before Working capltal changes 1,809.67 1,251.67
Movements in Working Capital : J
(Increase) / Decrense in trade & other receivables 1,136.83 (894.81)
Increase | (Decrease] in trade & other payables (81.17) 514.95
Cash Oenerated From Operations 2,865.33 901.71
Less : Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) n2.15 (51.05)
Xet cash flow from/{used in) operating activities (A) 2,927.48 850.66
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Murchase / payvment of Property, Plant and Equipment/Capital work in progress . (2,507.48) (5,650.54)
Interest income 24,77 -
Investments in fixed deposits (551.78) B
Proceeds from capital subsidy 1,620.00 2,430.00
Net cash used In investing activities (B) (1,414.49) [3,220.54)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of preference share capital - 579.62
Proceeds from non current borrowings - 3,008.00
Proceeds from Inter corporate loan - 951.96
Repayment of Inter corporate loan - (951.96)
Repayment of non current borrowings (670.71) (617.85)
Finance costs paid [599.54) (504.82)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) {1,270.26) 2,464.95
Ket Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 242.74 95.08
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year * 128.91 33.84
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 371.65 128.91

* Refer Note no 7
Kotes:
The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (IND -AS ) - 7 on * Statement of

Cash Flows™

—

2 The amendments to the Ind-AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financia! statcments to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation
between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The required
disclosure is made below. -

{ T in Lakhs)
As at 1st April, Cash Inflows/
Particulars 2022 (Outflows) Non Cash Flow Changes As at 31st March, 2023
Interest Component On 6%
Equity Component Non Cumulative Redecmable
Of 8% Cumulative o
Redeemable Preference Shares/8%
Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares
Preference Bhares
Borrowings- Non Current® 7,646.77 670.71) (365.93) 140.41 6,750.54
7,646.77 (670.71) {365.93) 140.41 6,750.54

* including current maturities of non current borrowings

3 Figures in bracket represents cash outflow

The accompanying notes are forming part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For GSA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants VT EMobility Private Limited

Firm Registration No. -
V -_—

Krishan Kunmyar Gupta Sharatl Gupta

Director Director
Membership No. 529619 DIN : 08663129 DIN : 08670417

Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Place : New Delhi
Date : 08-May-2023
P\(ﬂl Sateaten
Amit Sharma Ajamal Bhai Ukabhal Chavada
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
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VT EMobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360600
statement of Changes In Equity For The Yenr Ended 318t March, 2023

A. Equlty Share capltal

(1) Current reporting perlod ( 2 in Lakhs)
Changes in
Changes in
Equity Bhare Restated Dalance at the
Particular Bnln:c::lu;;;:llt Capital due to | balance at 1st (iqt;lg :t!:.ll: end of 31st
prit prior perlod April 2022 ‘:hc u: E | March, 2023
|- errors y
Equity Share Capital 25.00 - 25.00 - 25.00
(1) Previous reporting perlod ( T in Lakhs)
Changes in
Changes in
Equity Share Restated Balance at the
Particular nﬂ:‘“ﬁ:;g;fht Capital due to | balance at 1st ;q'::;i :ET: end of 31st
PTth prior period April 2021 Fth : AR | March, 2022
crrors © year
Equity Share Capital 25.00 - 25.00 - 25.00
B. Other Equity
(i) Current reporting period ( 7 in Lakhs)
Equity
Share application| component of
Particular money pending compound :::al‘ne: Total
allotment financial ning
' instruments
Balance as at O1st April, 2022 - 704.11 72.67 776.78
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting peried - - - -
Balance as at O1st April, 2022 - 704.11 72.67 776.78
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 197.71 197.71
:Jf;rm Component of 8% cumulative preference share transferred during the i 365.03 . 165.93
Interest Accrued of previous year transfer to retained earnings 65.77 65.77
Deferred Tax Liabilities on Equity component of financial instruments (269.31) - (269.31)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 - 800.73 336.15 1,136.88
{il) Previous reporting period
Equlity
Share application| component of tai
money pending compound Re i ed Total
allotment financial Earnings
instruments
Balance as et 01st April, 2021 051.96 - (26.31) 925 65
Changes in accounting policy or prior errors - - . -
Balance as at Olst April, 2021 951.96 - {26.31) 925.65
Profit/(Loss) for the year B = 98.98 98.98
Share application money received During the year - . I S .
Utilised towards issuc for Share capital (951.96) i (951.96)
Preference share issued during the year . 704.11 . 704.11
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 - 704.11 72.67 776.78

The accompanying Notes are forming part of these financial statements
As per our rcport uf even date attached

*rca q} For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartere Acwuntal}s.,o gincfes Ll—/} VT EMobility Private Limited

Firm Registratl o - L0

Partner : Krishan Kiynar Gupta Sharad Gupta
Membership No. 529619 ?p‘,\ Director Director
S DIN : 08663129 DIN : 08670417
= Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi
Place : New Delhi
f\ff\ :Shajm @’j
Amit Sharma Ajamal Bhai Ukabhai Chavada
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
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VT EMobllity Private Limited
CIN: U63030DL2020PTCAG0G00
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

VT Emobility Private Limited (the *Company”) is a private limited Company incorporated on 21-Jan-2020 under the Companies Act,
2013 having its registered office at 601, Hemkunt Chambers, 89, Nchru Place, New Delhi (South Delhi), 110019 India. The principal
activities of the Company are owning, operating and maintaining electric vehicles commercially and managing depots,

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorize for issue on 08th
Mav 2023

2, Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared as a going concern in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

2.2 Basis of Preparation and Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value at the end of ecach reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies mentioned below.
Histonical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or services.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current according to the Company's operating cycle and other criteria
set out in the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

2.3 Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses for the period presented. Actual results may differ from the estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the peniod in which the estimates are revised and future periods affected. .

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

2.4 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, cash
discount, trade allowances, sales incentives and value added taxes. The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue and
its related cost can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have
been met for each of the Company’s activities as described below.

Sale of Services
Revenue from services are recognized as related services are performed.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:
1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's performance as the Company

performs;
2. The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

3. The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the
performance obligation is satisfied.

Interest Income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the

amount of income can be measured reliably. For all Financial instruments measured either at amortized or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). Interest income is included in other income in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income in respect of financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss is
included in other income.

2.5 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production n!’ qualifying assets, which are nsscts that
necessanly take a substantal period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are addedto-the cost of those as

time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Where the funds used to finance a qualifying asset form part of general borrowings,
weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Company during
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VT EMobility Private Limited

CIN: US3030DLIOZOPFTCIA0600
NOTES FORMING PARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest income camad on the temporary mvestment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on quahfving assets is deducted
from the bomowing coats ehgble R capitahization.

All other barmonang costs are recoenised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred,

Boarmowing costs oonsast of interest, which is computedd as per effective interest method, and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the bormowing of funde, Barrowang cont also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the barmowang costs

2.6 Employee Benefits

Short-term odligations

Liabiities for wages and salanes including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled within the operating cycle after the
end of the pervod i which the emplovees render the related services are recognised in the period in which the related services are
rendered and are measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid,

Other longterm employee dbeneflt obligations

Liabilities for keave encashment and compensated absences which are not expected to be settled wholly within the operating cyele after
the end of the perrod in which the employees render the related service are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows which i expected to be pard uming the projected unit credit method, The benefits are discounted using the market yiclds at the
end of the reparting penad on Government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
Remeasurements as a result of expentence adjusiments and changes in actuanial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss,

Post-employment ohligations
Defined benefit plans
The Company has defined benefit plans namely gratuity for emplovees,

The habuliny or asset recognised i the Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligaton at
the end of the porting pervad less the fair value of plan assets, The defined Lenefit obligation is calculated annually by Actuary using
the prorectad unt crecht method,

The present value of the defined benefit obhgation iz determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
marke! vields at the end of the reporting peniod on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obheation,

The net interest cost is calculated by apphang the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
nlan assets. This cost is included in enplovee benefit expense in profit or loss,

Remeasurement gans and losses ansing from expenence adjustments and changes in actuanal assumptions arce recognised in the
penad in which they oocur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamings in the Statement of
Chanees in Equity and in the Balance Sheet,

Changes mn the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulung from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately m profit or loss as past servee cost.

Defined contridution plans

The Company has defined contnbution plans for post retirements benefits, namely, Employee Provident Fund Scheme administered
through Prowdent Fund Commissioner. The Company’s contnbution s chamged to revenue every year. The Company has no further
payment obligatons once the contnbutions have been paid. The Company’s contndbution to State Plans namely Employees’ State
Insurance Fund Scheme, Employves’ Penston Scheme and Labour welfare fund are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss every
\Tar.

Termination Benefits
A hability for the termination benefit is recognised when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit.

2.7 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax curmrently pavable and deferred tax.

Current tax =

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of moome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable o deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
v the end of the reporting venod,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s revognuzed on temporany differences between the carming amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the comesponding tax bases usad in the computation of taxable profits. Deferred tax habilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferted tax assets are recogrussd for all deductuible temporany differences and incurred tax losses to the extent
that 1t s prohable that taxable profits wmill be avaladle agamnst which those deductidle temporany differences can be utilisad. Such
deferred tax assets and labiiies are not recomused if the temporany difference anses from the initial eoognition (other than in a
business combmnanon) of assets and labiities i a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carmying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting p
nrobable that sufficent taxable profits will be avadable to allow all or part of the asset
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Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is nctl!rd
or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or scttle the carrying amount of its asscts and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the income taxes arc also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

2.8 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment [PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The cost of tangible asset includes purchase cost (net of rebates and discounts) including any import duties and non-
refundable taxes, and any directly attributable costs on making the asset ready for its intended use. Frechold land is measured at cost

and is not depreciated,

Interest cost incurred on qualifying assct is capitalized up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use, based on borrowings
incurred specifically for financing the asset or the weighted average rate of all other borrowings if no specific borrowings have been
incurred for the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a scparate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. The other repairs and
maintenance of revenue nature are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they have incurred.

Projects under which the property, plant and equipment is not yet ready for their intended use are carried as capital work-in-progress
at cost determined as aforesaid.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method on a pro-rata basis from the month in which each asset is ready to use to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives of the assets as prescribed in Schedule Il of the
companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following assets where estimated useful life is determined as per management’s estimate
based on technical advice which considered the nature of assets, the usage of asset, expected physical wear & tear:

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives based on technical evaluation
Commercial Vehicle (Bus) 10 years

Power Infra 10 years

Furniture & Fixtures 10 years

Office Equipments S years

Office Equipments-Other 3 vears

Computer 3 years

The assets’ residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are credited / debited to profit or loss,

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted,

2.9 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions
Prnvisiorzs are rccugnizcd when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation.

P.rovisions are determined based on best management estimate required to settle the obligsG
t:me'va.luc of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
cost

. *

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current b%




JBM:®

O s keshomes. by Wmachutimms

*
VT EMobility Private Limited
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS

Contingent liabilities . _ o B .

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets - - .

Contingent asset being a possible assct that arises from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, is not recognized but disclosed in
the financial statements.

2.10 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
anather entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial instruments (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in profit or loss. Subsequently, financial instruments are measured according to the category in which they are classified.

(i) Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost using the effective interest method
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

(ii) Classification of financial assets

Classification of financial assets depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost unless the asset is designated at fair value
through profit or loss under the fair value option:

- Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold .the financial asset to collect the contractual cash
flows.

- Cash flow characteristic test: The contractual term of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income unless the
asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option:

- Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting cash flows and
selling financial assets.

- Cash flow cl?ar?clcristic test: The contractual term of the financial asset.gives rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sé:lely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

-

All other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(ill) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost less provision for impairment.

(iv) Cash and cash equivalents

I_n tl.u: C_ltlsh Flow Stat_cment_, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, cheques a
liquid ;;"c"’”“";‘m with original maturities of three months or less that are readily ghy
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet and for

statement. Book overdraft is shown within other financial liabilities in the Balance Shde
Cash Flow Statement,
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(v) Impairment of financlal assects:
The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
- financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Expected credit loss are measured through n loss allowance at an amount equal to :

- the twelve month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result frem those default events on the financial instruments that
are possible within twelve months after the reporting date); or

- full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial
instrument).

For trade reccivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial assct that result from transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

(vi) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when

- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash
flows to one or more recipients

- The right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(vil) Classification of debt or equity
Debt or equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(viii) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(ix) Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method or at fair value through
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(x) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods or services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial period which
are unpaid,

(=i} Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

3 3
(xii) Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired.

(xiil) Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the Lability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.11 Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabilit

participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the pres
transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
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_In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or linbility.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by
using the assct in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best

use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Balance Sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above

2.12 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares, except where the result is anti-dilutive.

2.13 Government Grants & Subsidies
Government grants are recognised only when there is a reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions
attached to them and the grants will be received.

Government grants relating to income are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company
recognises the expenses, the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Grant relating to assets are netted off
against the acquisition cost of the asset.

In case of a government grants relating to non-monetary asset, received for the use of the Company, both grant and asset are accounted
for at a nominal value.

2.14 Rounding of Amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and the accompanying notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule Ill (Division 1) of the Companies Act 2013, unless otherwise stated.
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VT EMobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360600

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { 7 in Lalkhs)
As at As at
NOR.C FINARCIAL ASSET 31at March, 2023 31st March, 2022
{Carried at amortised cost)
5 OTHER BANK BALANCES
In Fixed Deposit account of more than 12 months 551.78 )
original maturity* ‘
651.78 -

* Fixed Deposit of Rs, 309.58 lakh is under lien for Major Maintenance Reserve Account and Rs. 242.20 lakh is under lien for Debt
Service Reserve Account.

CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Carried at amortised cost)

6 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Considered good, Unsecured 205.38 1,176.80
205,38 1,176.80

Trade receivables aging as at 31st March, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due of payments #

Less than 6'| 6 month - 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 Total
months 1 year years

Unbilled

a Dues

(i) Undisputed Trade
Receivables - considered 33.63 171.75 - - - - 205.38
good '
(ii) Undisputed Trade
Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit
risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade
Receivables - credit impaired

(iv} Disputed Trade
Receivables—considered good
(v) Disputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit
risk

(vi) Disputed Trade
Receivables - credit impaired

Total 33.63 171.75 - - - = 205.38

i : Outstanding for following periods from due of payments #
Unbilled —

epaes 'Less then 6 |6 month - 1-2 years 2:3 years [ More than 3 Total

months 1 year - years

Particulars

(i) Undisputed Trade
Receivables — considered 10.37 1,166.44 - - - _ 1,176.80
good

(ii) Undisputed Trade
Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit
risk

(ifl) Undisputed Trade
Recelvables — credit impaired - -

(ivi Disputed Trade
Recrivables-considered good

(v Disputed Trade

Reccivables - which have
significant increase in credit - - -
risk

(vi) Disputed Trade
Receivables — credit impaired " - - - z . )

Total 10.37 1,166.44 - =) 2 = 1,176.80
Certain borrowings of the Company have been secured against Receivables (Refq
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VT EMobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360600

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( T in Lakhs)
As at As at
7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Balances with Banks
- In Current account 371.65 128.91
371.65 128.91

8 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETE([Unsecured, consldered good)

Interest Accrued 4.04 -
Security Deposits 1.18 45.28
5.22 45.28

9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS ( Unsecured, considered good)

Balance of Statutory/Government Authorities - 97.87
Capital Subsidy Receivable - 1,620.00
TDS/TCS Recoverable 73.27 135.42
Prepaid Expenses 135.31 142.34
Advance to Suppliers/Others 15.75 32.16

224,34 2,027.80

10 SHARE CAPITAL
A)  Authorised
2,50,000 (P.Y : 2,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 /-

25.00 25.00
each
23,50,000 (P.Y : 23,50,000) Preference Shares Rs. 2,350.00 2,350.00
100 /- each
2,375.00 2,375.00
B) Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up
2,50,000 (P.Y:2,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 /- 25.00 25.00
each
25.00 25.00
c Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at
© the end of the reporting period P .
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,50,000 2,50,000
Add: issued during the year - N
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the 2,50,000 2,50,000

year

(D) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each shareholder is entitled for one vote per share
held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(E) As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Name of Sharcholder
No. of % N fsh %
shares Shareholding | = 0 °" ®7%7°% | ghareholding

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- cach fully paid up
JBM Auto Limited 1,565,000 62.00% 1,555,000 62.00%
Vivek Travel Private Limited 95,000 38.00% 95,000 38.00%

(F) Equity shares held by the Holding Company in aggregate

As at As at
31lst M h,

e ST 3 arc 2Q23 31st March, 2022
No. of % %
shares Shareholding Na.of shares ld!ng

Equity shares of Rs, 10/- h fully paid up g TF

JBM Auto Limited ﬁ éﬂ/\

: uto Limite e
. ‘ 4@/\9)\ 1,55,000 62.00% 1,55,0007 peig-O%%|
Vivek Travel Private r;‘«’ ted \r.\ 95,000 38.00% 95,0(\{3_\\ as. oyge/
w -
= o) /3\\\%06;:(&
- <OAC!
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VT EMobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360600

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL BTATEM ENTS8

() Equity shares held by promoters

Current Year

L}
Shares held by promoters As at 31st March , 2023 As at 31st March , 2022 % Change
during the
S. No Promoter name No. of % of total No. of Shares % of total year
1 JBM Auto Limited 1,55,000 062.00% 1,55,000 62.00% .
2 Vivek Trawvel Private Limited 95,000 3B.00% 95,000 38.00% -
Total 2,60,000 2,650,000
Previous Year
Shares held by promoters As at 31st March , 2022 As at 31st March , 2021 % Change
S. No Promoter name No. of % of total No. of Shares % of total during the
Shares shares shares year
1 JBM Auto Limited 1,565,000 62.00% 1,55,000 62.00% -
2 Vivek Travel Private Limited 95,000 38.00% 95,000 38.00% -
Total 2,650,000 2,50,000
( 2 in Lakhs)
As at As at

11 OTHER EQUITY

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

(i) Current reporting period { T in Lakhs)
Sha licati b f
re application| component ol
Particular money pending compound g::;ilned Total
allotment financlal ngs
instruments
Balance as at O1st April, 2022 - 704.11 72.67 776.78
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period . - -
Balance as at Olst April, 2022 - 704.11 72.67 776.78
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 197.71 197.71
iq;iw Component of 8% cumulative preference share transferred during the . 365.03 . 365.93
Interest Accrued of previous year transfer to retained eamings 65.77 65.77
Deferred Tax Liabilities on Equity component of financial instruments {269.31) - (269.31)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 - 800.73 336.15 1,136.88
{1} Previous reporting period
, Equity
Share application| component of Retalned
money pending compound Earnin Total
allotment financial arnings
instruments
Balance as at 01st April, 2021 951.96 - (26.31) 925.65
Changes in accounting policy or prior errors - - -
Balance as at Olst April, 2021 951.96 - (26.31) 925.65
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 98.98 98.98
Share application money received During the year - - .
Utilised towards issue for Share capital (951.96) (951.96)
Preference share issued during the year 704.11 704.11
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 : 704.11 T2.67T 776.78
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VT EMobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360600

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL S8TATEMENTS (2 in Lakhs)
NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIADILITIES
(Carried nt amortiscd cost, unless stated otherwise)
As at As at

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

12 NON CURRENT BORROWINGS
(a) LONG TERM BORROWINGS
A. SECURED
Term loan from others
In Rupee* 5,319.44 5,990.15
5,319.44 5,990.15
Less: Current Maturities of term loans 716.97 670.71
4,602.47 5,319.44
*Term loan of ¥ 5,319.44 lakh (31.03.2022 2 5,990.15 lakh ) is secured by first pari pasu charge on all moveable assets, receivables,
balance in Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve Account, Major Maintenance Reserve Account, Corporate Guarantee from JBM A.u'to
Limited, pledge of 1,55,000 No's of Equity Shares and 4,93,498 No's of 8% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of VT Emobility
Private Limited.
Maturity profile
Current reporting period
Balance as
- No. of Yee;rly Balance
Term of Repayment of Loan 31.03.2023 /Quarterly/ Instalment as Rate of interest
Monthly
(Rs. In Instalments at 31.03.2023
Lakhs)
31 Quarterly
Loan from Tata Cleantech-36CR 2,898.00 (6 months 24 TCCL NPLR LT*
Moratorium)
31 Quarterly
Loan from Tata Cleantech-20CR 1,610.00 (6 months 24 TCCL NPLR LT
Moratorium)
31 Quarterly
Loan from Tata Cleantech-10CR 811.44 (6 months 24 TCCL NPLR LT
Moratorium)
Total 5,319.49
Previous reporting period
Balance as
at l;lg.uo:r‘:::rl;' Balance
Term of Repayment of Loan 31.03.2022 Y Instalment as Rate of interest
Monthly
(Rs. In Instal ¢ at 31.03.2022
Lakhs) stalments
31 Quarterly
Loan from Tata Cleantech-36CR 3,263.40 (6 months 28 TCCL NPLR LT*
Moratorium)
31 Quarterly
Loan from Tata Cleantech-20CR 1,813.00 {6 months 28 TCCL NPLR LT*
Moratorium)
31 Quarterly
Loan from Tata Cleantech-10CR 913.75 (6 months 28 TCCL NPLR LT*
Moratorium)
Total 5,990.15
*TCCL NPLR LT : Tata Cleantech Capital Limited New Prime Lending Rate LT
There have been no breach of covenants mentioned in the loan agreements during the reporting period
B. UNSECURED

7,95,964 (P.Y: 7,95,964) 8% Redeemable

Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 100 /- each® $01.59 793.96

15,31,579 (P.Y: 15,31,579) 6% Non Cumulative

Redecmable Preference Shares of Rs. 100 /- each** 929.51 860.65
1,431.10 1,656.62

Total (A+B) 6,033.57 6,976.06

* 8% Redeemable Cummulative Preference shares shall

allotment

6% Non Cummulative Redeemable Preference s
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VT EMobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360600

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( ¥ in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
13 FROVISIONS
Provision for employce benefits 7.94 3.66
7.94 3.66

14 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES [NET)
Timing Differences on account of
Deferred tax liabilities

Related to property, plant and equipment and

. . 722.64 461.55
intangible assets

Equity component of compound financial instruments 22590

Deferred tax assets

Unabsorbed depreciation under Income Tax Act, (555.07) (397.49)
1961

Carry forwards losses under Income Tax Act, 1961 (0.84) (0.89)
Disallowance under Section 438 (2.08)

Net Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) [net) 390.55 63.22

Deferred tax liability and deferred tax asset has been offset as they relate to the same government taxation laws.

Major components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) arising on account of temporary difference are as follows:

Movement during the

As at Olst April, 2022 As at 31st March, 2023

year
Felatcd to property, plant and equipment and 461.55 261.00 722 64
intangible assets
Disallowance under Section 43B - (2.08) (2.08)
Equity component of compound financial . 225.90 225.90
instruments
I;Jgng:)sorbed depreciation under Income Tax Act, (397.49) (157.58) (555.07)
Carry forward losses under Income Tax Act, 1961 (0.84) - {0.84)
Total 63.22 327.33 390.55

Movement during the

As at O1st April, 2021 As at 31st March, 2022

year
.Relatet.ﬂ to property, plant and equipment and _ 461.55 461.55
intangible assets .
Unabsorbed depreciation under Income Tax Act, R (397.49) (397.49)
1961
Carry forward losses under Income Tax Act, 1961 (0.84) (0.84)
Total - 63.22 63.22
15 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES Al at i ot
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Deferred Government Grant 0.70 -
0.70 -
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(Carried at amortised cost)
16 CURRENT BORROWINGS
BECURED (Refer Note No.- 12a)
Current maturities of long term borrowings 716.97

716.97
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17

18

19

20

21

22

TRADE PAYABLES*

Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and

Small Enterprises

As at

31st March, 2023

[ 2 in Lakhs)

As at
31st March, 2022

Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 435.36 520.35
435.36 529.35
*Refer Note No. 35
Trade payables ageing as at 31st March, 2023
Particulars Unbilled Amount not Outstanding for following periods from due date of Grand
Ducs due <1 Years 1-2 years 2.3 years > 3 years Total
(IMSME ; ) E - - N n
(i1)Others 84.19 326.36 24.81 435.36
(i11) Disputed dues -MSME - - - - . -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 84,19 326.36 24.81 - - - 435.36
Trade payables ageing as at 31st March, 2022
Particulars Unbilled Amount not Outstanding for following periods from due date of Grand
Dues due <1 Years 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years Total
()MSME . E . - _ = .
(ii)Others 282.08 - 247.27 529.35
(111) Disputed dues -MSME - . .
(v} Disputed dues - Others - - B A - - .
Total 282.08 - 247.27 - - - 529.35
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 65.77
Payable for capital goods - 2,506.31
Employee related Liabilities 24.69 24.29
24.69 2,596.37
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory dues payable 25.29 19.16
Deferred Government grant 0.10 .
25.39 19.16
PROVISIONS
Provision for employee benefits 0.32 0.05
0.32 0.05

REVENUE FROM OFERATIONS
Sale of services

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

3,532.35

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

2,341.77

3,532.35

2,341.77

Disaggregation of Revenue: The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, operating and maintaining electric vehicles
commercially and managing depots for Indian market. Hence, there is only one business and geographical segment.

The amounts receivables from customers become due after expiry of credit period which on an average is 30 days.

There is no significant financing component in any transaction with the customers.

OTHER INCOME
Interest on fixed deposits*
Provision Written Back
Miscellaneous income

* In relation to financial assets carried at amortised cost

19.99
31.43
9.02

60.45




VT EMobility Private Limited
CIN: U63030DL2020PTCI60600

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23

24

25

26

27

EMPLOYEE NENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries & wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Less: Transferred to Project Commissioned/under Commissioning
*Refer Note No 30

FINANCE COSTS
Interest on borrowings*
Interest on liability component of financial instruments®

Other financial charges

Less: Transferred to Project Commissioned/under Commissioning**

* In relation to financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
**Refer Note No 30

OTHER EXPENSES
Power & fuel
Rates & taxes
Commercial vehicle maintenance
Legal & professional expenses
Security expenses
AMC expenses
Insurance expenses
Other administrative expenses

Less: Transferred to Project Commissioned/under Commissioning
*Refer Note No 30

TAX EXPENSE
Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Deferred tax

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

JBMi®
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{ 2 in Lakhs)

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

324.66 243,70
32,93 22.43
2.07 2.60
359.65 268.73
. 11.82
359.65 256.91
560.96 461.56
140.41 96.88
69.69 41.82
771.06 600.26
- 111.95
771.06 488.30
701.37 558.44
604.93 349,37
0.04 11.58
23.80 8.18
49.68 46.00
10.61 8.58
602.28 422.91
56.62 15.53
15.06 10.18
1,363.03 872.32
- 39.04
1,363.03 833.28
57.74 63.45
57.74 63.45

The Major Component of Income Tax Expense and the reconciliation of expense based on domestic effective rate and the reported tax

expense in profit and loss are as follows :
Profitf(Loss) Before Tax

Rate of tax (At Country’s statutory Income Tax Rate)
Computed tax Expense

Disallowances/ Allowances

Tax Expense

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

[i] Gains/(losses) on defined benefits plans
(ii) Income tax expense on Gain/(loss) on defined
benefit nlans

254.60 163.13
25.17% 25.17%
64.08 41.06
(6.34) 22.39
57.74 63.45
1.13 (0.93)
(0.28) 0.23
0.84 (0.69)




CEE=—— Rl

- =« 0wl

JBM:i®

Our milsiones are Iouchsinnes

VT EMobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360600
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. 28 : EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity halders of the Company by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that

would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

{ ¥ in Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Profit/(loss) after tax 196.86 99.67
Weighted average number of equity shares (Outstanding during the 2,50,000 2,50,000
year)
-Face Value of share (Rs. 10/-)
Basic Earnings per share (in Rs.) 78.74 39.87
Diluted Earnings per share (in Rs.) 78.74 39.87
Note No. 29 : CONTINGENT LIABLITIES AND COMMITMENTS
A. Contingent liabilities: There is no contingent liability
B. Other Commitments ({ ¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars As-at . Asat
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Bank Guarantees 3,240.00 3,240.00
Note No. 30: Preoperative Expenses pending allocation
. { ? in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Nature of Expense
Balance as at beginning of the vear , 222.26
Additions during the vear:
Emplovee benefit expenses 11.82
Finance cost: intérest expense and bank guarantee charges 111.95
Power & fuel 7.79
Legal & professional 30.45
Rates and taxes B
Repair and maintenance 0.39
Other administrative expenses 0.41
Total 385.08
Less : Expenses capitalised during the vear 385.08

Balance as at end of the vear
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. 31 : EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

.-&. Defined Beneflt Plans as per Ind AS 19 Employece Bencefits:

Gratuity ‘ '
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on

departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for cach completed year of service. These benefits are unfunded.

These Plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as : Investment risk, Interest rate risk, Longevity risk and Salary risk.
Investment Risk: The Probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.

Interest Risk: The Plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates, A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the
ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the valuc of the liability.

Longevity risk : The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants during employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participarjts
in future, Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine
the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.

Disclosure of gratuity
The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded
status and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet. ’

(i) Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is as under: (? in Lakhs)
Description 31st March,2023 31st March,2022
Current service cost 5.21 2.43
Net interest cost 0.47 0.10
Past service cost - N
Actuarial loss/(gain] recognised during the year - -
Expected return on planned assets - -
Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 5.68 2,53
(ii) Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is as under:
Description 31st March,2023 31st March,2022
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognised during the vear - -
- Change in demographic assumptions - 0.79
- Change in financial assumptions 0.10 (0.70)
- Experience variance {i.e. actual experience vs assumptions) (1.23) 0.84
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expenses - -
Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (1.13) 0.93
(iii) Movement in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet is as under:
Description 31st March,2023 31st March,2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the start of the year 3.71 i 0.25
Current service cost 5.21 | 2.43
Interest cost 0.47 H 0.10
Actuanal loss/(gain) recognised during the vear (1.13) . 0.93
Change in demographic assumptions - =
Change in financial assumptions - -
Experience variance {i.e. actual experience vs assumptions} - N
Benefits paid . ~
Past service cost i N
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 8.26 3.71
(iv) Movement in the plan assets recognised in the Balance Sheet is as under:
Description 31st M -

arch,2023
Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of year : - et M“'Chzzozz
Interest income plan assets : ' .
Actual company contributions 2 :
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense
Benefits paid - -
Falr Value of plan Assets at the end of the year : /@\\."T C-:;'I:‘.\
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{v] Major categorics of plan assets:

Asset Category 31st March,2023 31st March,2022
Insurer Managed Funds ) 0% 0%
(vi] Analysis of nmounts recognised in other comprehensive {income)/loss at period end:

Description 31st March,2023 31st March,2022
Amount recognized in OCI, beginning, of period 0.93 -
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic assumption - 0.79
Actuarial {rain)/loss on arising {rom change in financial assumption 0.10 (0.70
Experience variance (i.e. actual experience vs assumptions) (1.22) 0.84
Return on plan assets (excluding interest] - e
Total remeasurement recognized in OCI (1.13) 0.93
Amount recognized in OCI, end of Period {0.20) 0.93
{vil) Reconciliation of Balance Sheet Amount

Description 31st March,2023 31st March,2022
Present value of obligation 8.26 3.71
Fair value of plan assets - -
Surplus/(Deficit) (8.26) (3.71
Effect of assets ceiling, if any - ‘
Net assets/(liability] (8.26) (3.71) |
(viii) Current / Non-Current Bifurcation

Description 31st March,2023 31st March,2022
Current Benefit Obligation 0.32 0.15
Non - Current Benefit Obligation 7.94 3.56
(Asset)/Liability Recognised in the Balance Sheet 8.26 3.71
(ix) Actuarial assumptions

Description 31st March,2023 31st March,2022
Discount rate 7.45% 7.33%
Future basic salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets NA NA
Mortality (% of IALM 12-14) 100.00% 100.00%
Normal retirement age 58 Years 58 Years
Attrition /withdrawal rate (per annum) 8.00% 15.00%
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

(x) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation (2 in Lakhs)
Expected Cash Flow over the next (Valued on undiscounted basis) 31st March,2023 31st March,2022

1 year 0.32 0.15
2 year 0.03 0.00
3 vear 0.03 0.00
4 year 0.71 0.00
5 year 0.95 0.00
6 to 10 years 4.97 0.24
More than 10 years 1.24 3.32
The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 12.91 Years .

(xi) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability {2 in Lakhs)
Description 31st March,2023 31st March,2022
Defined Benefit Obligation - change in discount rate

- Discount rate increase by 1.00 % {0.75) (0.37
- Discount rate decrease by 1.00 % 0.87 0.43
| Defined Benefit Obligation - change in salary rate

- Salarv rate increase by 1.00% 0.90 0.44
- Salary rate decrease by 1.00 % (0.79) (0.39)
Defined Benefit Obligation - change in Withdrawal rate

_Withdrawal rate increase by 1.00 % 0.42 .
_Withdrawal rate decrease by 1.00 % (0.41)
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The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is
unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied which was applied while calculating the defined benefit
obligation liability recognised in the Balance Sheet.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors are
determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical experience.

B. Defined Contribution and Other Flans

Contributions are made to the Provident Fund, Super Annuation Fund and Other Plans . The contributions are normally based upon a
proportion of the employee’s salary.
The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss :

Description 31st March,2023 31st March,2022
Emplover's Contribution to Superannuation Fund* 22.60 16.49
Employer's contribution to Employee State insurance* 8.82 4.50
Employer's contribution to Labour Welfare fund* 0.09 -

* included in contribution to provident & other funds under employee benefit expenses (Refer Note No 23)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. 33 : SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, operating and maintaining electric vehicles commercially and managing depots in
India. Hence, no separate segment disclosures as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments” have been presented. The said treatment is in accordance
with guidance principles enunciated in Ind AS 108 "Segment Reporting” as referred to in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

{ 2 in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Customer | 3,532.35 2.341.77
Note No. 34 : AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION (EXCLUDING GST) (2 in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
[A) Statutory Audit Fees 2.50 1.50
(B) Tax Audit Fees 1.00 ~

Note No. 35 : DETAILS OF DUES (TRADE PAYABLES) TO MICRO ENTERPRISES AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE

MSMED ACT, 2006
(2 In Lakhs)

S.No |Particulars For the year ended For the ycar ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

m The principal amount due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of]|
each accounting vear

(i) the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each -
accounting year

(iii) |The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 -
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which - -
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.

v] The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -

(vij |The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, - -
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act 2006

Note No. 36 : FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{A) Capital management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through efficient allocation of capital towards expansion of business, optimisation of working capital requirements and deployment of

surplus funds into various investment options.
The management of the Company reviews the capital structure of the Company on regular basis. As part of this review, the Board considers the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the movement in the working capital.

The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total equity. Net debt includes, loans and borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents.

(2 In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2023 J1st March, 2022
Net debt 6,378.89 7,517.86
Total equity 1,161.88 801.78
Net debt to equity ratio (Times) 5.49 9.38
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(B) Falr yvalue measurements
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques:

'The following is the basis of categorising the financial instruments measured at fair value into Level 1 to Level 3;

Level 1: This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
linbilities. -

Level 2: This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or linbility, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices),

Level 3: This level includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

The fair value of the financial assets are determined at the amount that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between

market participants. -
{C) Categories of financial instruments {2 In Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Particulars
Carrying Value Falr Value Carrying Value Falr Value
Financlal assets measured at amortised cost
Cash & cash equivalents 371.65 371.65 128.91 128.91
Trade receivables 205.38 205.38 1,176.80 1,176.80
Security deposits 5.22 5.22 45,28 45.28
Fixed deposits 551.78 551.78 - - -
Total financial assets measured at amortised cost 1,134.04 1,134.04 1,351.00 1,351.00

Finanecial labilities measured at amortised cost

Non current borrowings * 6,750.54 6,750.54 7,646.77 7,646.77
Trade payables 435.36 435.36 529.35 529.35
Other current financial liabilities 24.69 24.69 2,596.37 2,596.37
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 7,210.58 7,210.58 10,772.49 10,772.49

* including current maturities of non- current borrowings.

Carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, borrowings, fixed deposit, trade payables & other financial liabilities are considered
to be same as their fair value.

5
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(D) Pinancial risk management objectives and policies 3

The E-oa.rd of Directors gversee the Pisk Management Framework and developing and menitoring the Company’s risk management
pulicies. The risk management palicies are established to ensure tumely identification and evaluation of risks, setting acceptable risk
thresholds, identifying and mapping controls agamnst these nisks, monitor the risks and their Limits, improve risk awareness and
trznsparency. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the
Company’s activities to provide rehiable information to the Management and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.

he risk management policies aims to mitigate the {ollowing risks arising from the financial instruments:
- Market nsk

- Credit nek; and
- Ligquadsty nisk

D.1 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markst

prices. The Company does not have any Finandial Instruments affected by market risk hence no sensitivity analyses shown under this
risk

2) Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair vzlue or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating
activities [when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency)

£t present Company has no foreign currency exposure.

b) Interest rate risk management
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because Company borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is
managed by the Company by maintaining 2n approprizte mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

Ioterest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period. For
ficating rate Labilities, the analysis is prepared zssuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate nisk internally to key
manzgement personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Impact on Profit / (loss) for the year for a 50 basis point change:

Increase/decrease in basis points Effect on profit before tax
31-Mar-23
Borrowings +50 (26.60)
Borrowings -50 26.60
21-Mar-22
Eoryowings -50 29.95
D.2 Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will defzult on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The
Company has adopted 2 policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the nsl-: of fmandal_ loss from
defzulte. The Company's exposure and wherever appropriate, the credit ratings of its counterparties are c.:ununuously monitored and
sprezd zmongst various counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the

maznzgement of the Company.

Financiz] instruments that are subject to concentratons of credit risk, principally consist of balance with banks, trade receivables, loans
znd advances znd derivative financizl instruments. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentrations

of credit risks,
Dalznces with banks were not past due or impaired as at the year end. In other financial assets that are not past dues and not impaired,

shere were no indication of default in repayment a8 at the year end.

D.2 widity risk o '
}.:ﬂ::.:y risk refers to the risk that the Company can not meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management 1s to

emzintzin sufficent liquidity and to ensure funds are available for use as per the re: ts.
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The Company’s objective is 1o maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of long jerm borrowings,
short term borrowings and trade payables etc. The Company has nccess to a suflicient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing
within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

{t In Lakhs)

Particulars Lessthan1 1 to 5 years More than 5 Total

year years
As at 31st March, 2023
Nen Current Borrowings® 716.97 3,581.53 1,020.94 5,319.44
Preference Shares (Undiscounted) - . 2,327.54 2,327.54
Trade payvables 435.36 - - 435.36
Other financial liabilities : 24.69 - - 24.69
Total 1,177.01 3,581.53 3,348.48 8,107.02
Particulars Less than 1 1to 5 years More than 5 Total

year years
As at 31st March, 2022
Non Current Borrowings* 670.71 4,298.50 1,020.94 5,990.15
Preference Shares (Undiscounted) - - 2,327.54 2,327.54
Trade payables 529.35 - - 529.35
Other finandal liabilities 2,596.37 - - 2,596.37
Total 3,796.43 4,298.50 3,348.48 11,443.42

*sincluding current maturities of non- current borrowings.

Kote Ko. 37 : EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no reportable events that occurred after the end of the reporting period.




VT EMoblility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360600
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. 38 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparntion of the Company's financial stntements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, nssets and Habilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilitics. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The Company continually evaluates these estimates and
assumptions based on most recently available information. Revision to accounting estimntes are recognized prospectively in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(1) Falr value measurement of financial Instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financinl liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model
based on level-2 and level-3 inputs. The inputs to these models nre taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as price
estimates, volume estimates, rate estimates ete. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments.

(ii) Impairment of financial asscts

The impairment provisions for trade receivables are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The company
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation based on the company's past
history and other factors at the end of each reporting period.

Assumptions are also made by the management with respect to valuation of inventories, contingencies, and measurement of
recoverable amounts of cash generation unit.,

(iii) Estimates related to useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives estimated by the management.
These rates are in line with the lives prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The management has re-estimated useful lives and residual values of its assets. The management based upon the nature of asset, the
operating condition of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, past history of replacement and anticipated technological changes,
believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment & Intangible Assets,

(iv) Impalirment of Assets

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. In
calculating the value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters, including
management’s expectations of growth in EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks
involved. -

(v) Contingent liabilities

The contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company. The Company evaluates the obligation through
Probable, Possible or Remote model (PPR). In making the evaluation for PPR, the Company take into consideration the Industry
perspective, legal and technical view, availability of documentation/agreements, interpretation of the matter, i.ndepen‘;dent opinion from
professionals (specific matters) etc. which can vary based on subsequent events. The Company provides the liability in the books for
probable cases, while possible cases are shown as contingent liability. The remotes cases are not disclosed in the financial statement.

(vi) Taxes

Provision for tax liabilities require judgments on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case law and the potential
outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from
expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax
charge in the Statement of Profit or Loss. i
(vil) Gratuity benefits

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valiiations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.
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VT EMobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360600
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amount in Inkhs, unless otherwise stated)

B Other Regulatory Informations
8r No Particulars
The Company has not granted Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the
1 related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
2 holding any Benami property.

The Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies

3 Act, 2013) or consortium thereof or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the Reserve
Bank of India.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section
4 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with The Registrar of Companies (ROC)
5 beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

6 (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocver by or on behall of the
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
8 disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any
other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

9 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.




VT EMobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360600

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. 40 : AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE AKD HAVE NOT BEEN ADOPTED BY THE
COMPARY

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA" notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards] Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Finandal Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies
rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial statements.

Ind AS B - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting
estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has
evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statement.

Note No. 41 : OTHER

During the previous year a share purchase and Sale agreement signed between JBM Auto Limited and Vivek Travels Private Limited,
according to that Vivek Travels Private Limited agrees to sale all its shares to JBM Auto Limited. Agreed consideration has been paid by
JBM Auto Limited to Vivek Travels Private Limited, but share transfer in the name of JBM Auto Limited not done. Now JBM Auto Limited
has taken full control over the company.

As per our report of even date attached
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